

CHAPTER 485—H.F.No. 3213

An act relating to natural resources; providing for the establishment of heritage forest areas in specified counties; modifying timber provisions; requiring a report on the process for public involvement in timber harvest plans; requiring certain rule changes for public use of recreational areas; amending Minnesota Statutes 1998, sections 90.121; 90.14; 90.151, subdivisions 1 and 4; 90.161, subdivisions 1 and 2; 90.162; 90.173; 90.181; 90.201, subdivision 2, and by adding a subdivision; 90.252; 90.281; 97A.135, subdivision 2a; and 477A.11, subdivisions 3 and 4; proposing coding for new law in Minnesota Statutes, chapters 90; and 97A.

BE IT ENACTED BY THE LEGISLATURE OF THE STATE OF MINNESOTA:

Section 1. **[90.042] PUBLIC INVOLVEMENT PROCESS.**

By July 1 each year, the commissioner must provide a complete description of the public involvement process for timber harvest plans to the chairs of the legislative committees with jurisdiction over natural resources policy and finance. The process must provide public notice and public input in affected areas of proposed annual harvest plans.

Sec. 2. Minnesota Statutes 1998, section 90.121, is amended to read:

90.121 INTERMEDIATE AUCTION SALES; MAXIMUM LOTS OF 3,000 CORDS.

The commissioner may sell the timber on any tract of state land in lots not exceeding 3,000 cords in volume, in the same manner as timber sold at public auction under section 90.101, and related laws, subject to the following special exceptions and limitations:

(1) sales shall be at the forest office or other public facility most accessible to potential bidders or close to where the tract is located;

(2) the commissioner's list describing the tract, quantity of timber, and appraised price shall be compiled not less than 30 days before the date of sale and a copy of the list posted not less than 30 days before the date of the sale at the location designated for the sale;

(3) notice of the sale shall be published once, not less than one week before the date of the sale;

(4) no bidder may be awarded more than 25 percent of the total tracts offered at the first round of bidding unless fewer than four tracts are offered, in which case not more than one tract shall be awarded to one bidder. Any tract not sold may be offered for sale for a period of no more than six months for purchase by persons eligible under this section at the appraised value;

(5) the bond or deposit required pursuant to section 90.161 or 90.173 shall be given or deposited and approved as to form and execution by the commissioner before any cutting begins or not later than 120 days after the date of purchase, whichever is earlier; provided that the commissioner may extend the time for furnishing the bond or deposit for not more than 30 additional days for good cause shown;

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

(6) in lieu of the placing of the marks M I N on cut products as prescribed under section 90.151, subdivision 2, all landings of cut products shall be legibly marked with the name of the permit holder and the assigned permit number; and

(7) no person may hold more than six permits issued under this section and no sale may be made to a person holding six permits which are still in effect or to a person having more than 20 employees;

(8) the permit may not exceed three years in duration; and

(9) if all cut timber, equipment, and buildings are not removed at the end of any 120-day extension period which the commissioner may grant for removal, the commissioner may grant a second period of time not to exceed 120 days for the removal of cut timber, equipment, and buildings upon receipt of a request by the permit holder for hardship reasons only.

The auction sale procedure set forth in this section constitutes an additional alternative timber sale procedure available to the commissioner and is not intended to replace other authority possessed by the commissioner to sell timber in lots of 3,000 cords or less.

Sec. 3. Minnesota Statutes 1998, section 90.14, is amended to read:

90.14 AUCTION SALE PROCEDURE.

(a) All state timber shall be offered and sold by the same unit of measurement as it was appraised. The sale shall be made to the party who (1) shall bid the highest price for all the several kinds of timber as advertised, or (2) if unsold at public auction, to the party who purchases at any sale authorized under section 90.101, subdivision 1. The commissioner may refuse to approve any and all bids received and cancel a sale of state timber for good and sufficient reasons.

(b) The purchaser at any sale of timber shall, immediately upon the approval of the bid, or, if unsold at public auction, at the time of purchase at a subsequent sale under section 90.101, subdivision 1, pay to the commissioner ~~25~~ 15 percent of the appraised value. In case any purchaser fails to make such payment, the purchaser shall be liable therefor to the state in a civil action, and the commissioner may reoffer the timber for sale as though no bid or sale under section 90.101, subdivision 1, therefor had been made.

(c) In lieu of the scaling of state timber required by this chapter, a purchaser of state timber may, at the time of the bid approval and upon payment by the purchaser to the commissioner of 15 percent of the appraised value, elect in writing on a form prescribed by the attorney general to purchase a permit based solely on the appraiser's estimate of the volume of timber described in the permit, provided that the commissioner has expressly designated the availability of such option for that tract on the list of tracts available for sale as required under section 90.101 or 90.121. A purchaser who elects in writing on a form prescribed by the attorney general to purchase a permit based solely on the appraiser's estimate of the volume of timber described on the permit does not have recourse to the provisions of section 90.281.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 4. Minnesota Statutes 1998, section 90.151, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **ISSUANCE; EXPIRATION.** (a) Following receipt of the down payment for state timber sold at public auction, the commissioner shall issue a numbered permit to the purchaser, in a form approved by the attorney general, by the terms of which the purchaser shall be authorized to enter upon the land, and to cut and remove the timber therein described, according to the provisions of this chapter. The permit shall be correctly dated and executed by the commissioner or agent and signed by the purchaser.

(b) The permit shall expire no later than five years after the date of sale as the commissioner shall specify, and the timber shall be cut within the time specified therein. All cut timber, equipment, and buildings not removed from the land within 90 days after expiration of the permit shall become the property of the state.

(c) The commissioner may grant an additional period of time not to exceed 120 days for the removal of cut timber, equipment, and buildings upon receipt of such request by the permit holder for good and sufficient reasons. The commissioner may grant a second period of time not to exceed 120 days for the removal of cut timber, equipment, and buildings upon receipt of a request by the permit holder for hardship reasons only.

(d) No permit shall be issued to any person other than the purchaser in whose name the bid was made.

Sec. 5. Minnesota Statutes 1998, section 90.151, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **PERMIT TERMS.** The permit shall provide that all timber sold or designated for cutting shall be cut without damage to other timber; that the permit holder shall remove all timber authorized to be cut under the permit; that timber sold by board measure but later determined by the commissioner not to be convertible into board measure shall be paid for by the piece or cord or other unit of measure according to the size, species, or value, as may be determined by the commissioner; that all timber products, except as specified by the commissioner, shall be scaled and the final settlement for the timber cut shall be made on this scale; and that the permit holder shall pay to the state the permit price for all timber authorized to be cut, including timber not cut.

Sec. 6. Minnesota Statutes 1998, section 90.161, subdivision 1, is amended to read:

Subdivision 1. **BOND REQUIRED.** Except as otherwise provided by law, the purchaser of any state timber, before any timber permit shall become effective for any purpose, shall ~~within 120 days from the date of purchase~~ give a good and valid bond to the state of Minnesota equal to the value of all timber covered or to be covered by the permit, as shown by the sale price bid and the appraisal report as to quantity, less the amount of any payment pursuant to section 90.14. The bond shall be conditioned upon the faithful performance by the purchaser and successors in interest of all terms

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

and conditions of the permit and all requirements of law in respect to timber sales. The bond shall be approved in writing by the commissioner and filed for record in the commissioner's office. In the alternative to cash and bond requirements, but upon the same conditions, a purchaser may post bond for 100 percent of the purchase price and request refund of the amount of any payment pursuant to section 90.14. The commissioner may credit the refund to any other permit held by the same permit holder if the permit is delinquent as provided in section 90.181, subdivision 2, or may credit the refund to any other permit to which the permit holder requests that it be credited.

Sec. 7. Minnesota Statutes 1998, section 90.161, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **FAILURE TO BOND.** If bond is not furnished ~~within 120 days from the date of purchase, no harvesting may occur and~~ the down payment for timber shall forfeit to the state, ~~except that the commissioner may grant an extension of time for good and sufficient reason, provided that any extension of time shall not exceed 30 days.~~

Sec. 8. Minnesota Statutes 1998, section 90.162, is amended to read:

90.162 ALTERNATIVE TO BOND OR DEPOSIT REQUIREMENTS.

In lieu of the bond or cash deposit required by section 90.161 or 90.173, a purchaser of state timber may, at the time of the bid approval and upon payment by the purchaser to the commissioner of ~~25~~ 15 percent of the appraised value under section 90.14, elect in writing on a form prescribed by the attorney general to prepay the purchase price for any designated cutting block identified on the permit before the date the purchaser enters upon the land to begin harvesting the timber.

Sec. 9. Minnesota Statutes 1998, section 90.173, is amended to read:

90.173 PURCHASER'S OR ASSIGNEE'S CASH DEPOSIT IN LIEU OF BOND.

(a) In lieu of filing the bond required by section 90.161 or 90.171, as security for the issuance or assignment of a timber permit the person required to file the bond may deposit with the state treasurer cash, a certified check, a cashier's check, a personal check, a postal, bank, or express money order, assignable bonds or notes of the United States, or an assignment of a bank savings account or investment certificate or an irrevocable bank letter of credit, in the same amount as would be required for a bond. If securities listed in this section are deposited, the par value of the securities shall be not less than the amount required for the timber sale bond, and the person required to file the timber sale bond shall submit an agreement authorizing the commissioner to sell or otherwise take possession of the security in the event of default under the timber sale. All of the conditions of the timber sale bond shall equally apply to the deposit with the state treasurer. In the event of a default the state may take from the deposit the sum of money to which it is entitled; the remainder, if any, shall be returned to the person making the deposit ~~and shall bear interest at the rate determined pursuant to section 549.09 if not returned within 30 days from the date of the default.~~ Sums of money as may be required by the state treasurer to carry out the terms and provisions

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

of this section are appropriated from the general fund to the state treasurer for these purposes. When cash is deposited for a bond, it shall be applied to the amount due when a statement is prepared and transmitted to the permit holder pursuant to section 90.181. Any balance due to the state shall be shown on the statement and shall be paid as provided in section 90.181. Any amount of the deposit in excess of the amount determined to be due pursuant to section 90.181 shall be returned to the permit holder when a final statement is transmitted pursuant to that section. All or part of a cash bond may be withheld from application to an amount due on a nonfinal statement if it appears that the total amount due on the permit will exceed the bid price.

(b) If an irrevocable bank letter of credit is provided as security under paragraph (a), at the written request of the permittee the state shall annually allow the amount of the bank letter of credit to be reduced by an amount proportionate to the value of timber that has been harvested and for which the state has received payment under the timber permit. The remaining amount of the bank letter of credit after a reduction under this paragraph must not be less than the value of the timber remaining to be harvested under the timber permit.

Sec. 10. Minnesota Statutes 1998, section 90.181, is amended to read:

90.181 STATEMENT OF TIMBER CUT.

Subdivision 1. **PASSAGE OF TITLE TO TIMBER.** (a) The commissioner shall transmit to the permit holder a statement of the amount due therefor by the terms of the permit upon completion of the cutting or at least annually in the case of an auction permit. Any partial payment received may be applied to any items on the statement as the commissioner shall determine.

(b) The title to the timber shall not pass from the state until such the timber has been scaled as required by the permit and the commissioner has made adequate arrangements for collecting the payment for the same as will protect the interest of the state, full payment for the timber has been received, and all other provisions of the permit have been fully complied with.

Subd. 2. **DEFERRED PAYMENTS.** (a) If the amount of the statement is not paid within 30 days of the date thereof, it shall bear interest at the rate determined pursuant to section ~~549.09~~ 16A.124, except that the purchaser shall not be required to pay interest that totals \$1 or less. If the amount is not paid within 60 days, the commissioner shall place the account in the hands of the attorney general who shall proceed to collect the same. When deemed in the best interests of the state, the commissioner shall take possession of the timber for which an amount is due wherever it may be found and sell the same informally or at public auction after giving reasonable notice.

(b) The proceeds of the sale shall be applied, first, to the payment of the expenses of seizure and sale; and, second, to the payment of the amount due for the timber, with interest; and the surplus, if any, shall belong to the state; and, in case a sufficient amount is not realized to pay these amounts in full, the balance shall be collected by the attorney general. Neither payment of the amount, nor the recovery of judgment

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

therefor, nor satisfaction of the judgment, nor the seizure and sale of timber, shall release the sureties on any bond given pursuant to this chapter, or preclude the state from afterwards claiming that the timber was cut or removed contrary to law and recovering damages for the trespass thereby committed, or from prosecuting the offender criminally.

Sec. 11. Minnesota Statutes 1998, section 90.201, subdivision 2, is amended to read:

Subd. 2. **REFUNDS ON FINAL BILLING; INTEREST PAYMENT ON LATE REFUNDS.** The commissioner shall refund to a permit holder any amount paid on a timber sale which exceeds the value of the timber cut under that sale as determined on a final statement transmitted pursuant to section 90.181. The commissioner may credit a refund to any other permit held by the same permit holder if the permit is delinquent as provided in section 90.181, subdivision 2, and may credit a refund to any other permit to which the permit holder requests that it be credited.

Any refund of cash which is due to a permit holder as determined on a final statement transmitted pursuant to section 90.181 which is not paid to the permit holder within 45 days after the date of that statement shall bear interest at the rate determined pursuant to section 549.09 unless the refund is credited on another permit as provided in this subdivision. Interest shall be paid from the date of the final statement. No interest shall be paid in an amount of \$50 or less.

Sec. 12. Minnesota Statutes 1998, section 90.201, is amended by adding a subdivision to read:

Subd. 2a. **PROMPT PAYMENT OF REFUNDS.** Any refund of cash that is due to a permit holder as determined on a final statement transmitted pursuant to section 90.181 or a refund of cash made pursuant to section 90.161, subdivision 1, or 90.173, paragraph (a), shall be paid to the permit holder according to section 16A.124 unless the refund is credited on another permit as provided in this chapter.

Sec. 13. Minnesota Statutes 1998, section 90.252, is amended to read:

90.252 CONSUMER SCALE OF STATE TIMBER.

The commissioner may enter into an agreement with either a timber sale permittee, or the purchaser of the cut products, or both, so that the scaling of the cut timber and the collection of the payment for the same can be consummated by the consumer. Such an agreement shall provide for a bond or cash in lieu of a bond and such other safeguards as are necessary to protect the interests of the state. Such a scaling and payment collection procedure may be used for any state timber sale, except that ~~in the case of timber sold under section 90.101,~~ no permittee who is also the consumer shall both cut and scale the timber sold unless such scaling is supervised by a state scaler.

Sec. 14. Minnesota Statutes 1998, section 90.281, is amended to read:

90.281 RESCALES, RECOUNTS AND REESTIMATES.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

(a) Upon complaint of any interested permit holder questioning the accuracy of any scale, count, or estimate of timber made by any state appraiser, or at any other time the commissioner determines in the absence of a complaint, the commissioner may cause a rescale, recount, or reestimate thereof to be made jointly by any two or more state appraisers, which when made shall supersede and for all purposes take the place of the original scale, count, or estimate, if and only when the scale or count varies more than ten percent from the original or the estimate exceeds the standards established by section 90.045.

(b) As a condition precedent to the making of any such a rescale, recount, or reestimate upon the complaint of any person, the commissioner may require such the person to make available such sum of money as the commissioner deems necessary for the actual expenses thereof and to forfeit the same to the state if such the rescale, and recount, or reestimate does not vary more than ten percent from the original or the reestimate does not exceed the standards established by section 90.045. All such forfeited money shall be paid into the state treasury and credited to the fund or account from which the expenses of such the rescale, recount, or reestimate were paid.

Sec. 15. LEGISLATIVE FINDINGS; PURPOSE.

Consolidated-conservation lands are lands that have a unique status under the legislative acts of 1929, 1931, and 1933 that created boundaries for the lands to become consolidated-conservation lands in Beltrami, Koochiching, Lake of the Woods, Aitkin, Mahnommen, Marshall, and Roseau counties. The counties and the commissioner of natural resources have had joint interests, responsibilities, and receipts of revenues from the consolidated-conservation lands as provided by law which have led to disagreements and frustration over the designation and use of these lands. The lands were privately owned and became tax-forfeited from drainage and property taxes leaving the counties with the burden of providing infrastructure without taxable lands to provide supporting revenue. The commissioner of natural resources has been charged with developing game preserves, forestry areas, and other state purposes on these lands that were previously privately owned and drained wholly or partially for settlement. The goals and uses for the consolidated-conservation lands require a working relationship between the counties and the commissioner to resolve state and county concerns for the lands.

It is the purpose of this act to designate certain consolidated-conservation lands as forestry or wildlife management lands with certain uses so that there is no further dispute about the status of those lands, to provide increased payments in lieu of taxes to support county infrastructure, and to provide a structure and forum for the counties and the commissioner to resolve identified issues and make common recommendations to the legislature.

Sec. 16. [97A.133] STATE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREAS.

Subdivision 1. ESTABLISHMENT. State wildlife management areas are established and designated as provided under this section. State wildlife management areas are located and named as indicated in this section.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 2. PAYMENT IN LIEU OF TAXES. The consolidated conservation lands included in state wildlife management areas are subject to the payment in lieu tax as provided in section 477A.12, paragraph (a), clause (1).

Subd. 3. ALL-TERRAIN VEHICLE TRAVEL WITHIN DESIGNATED WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREAS. (a) On lands acquired by the state under chapter 84A that are designated after January 1, 1986, as wildlife management areas, the commissioner shall, by January 15, 2003, identify and designate corridor trails in corridors of disturbance that the commissioner determines are appropriate to connect trails, forest roads established under section 89.71, subdivision 1, and public highways to provide reasonable travel for all-terrain vehicles. The commissioner shall consult with wildlife management area users, including both motorized and nonmotorized trail users, in identifying and designating corridor trails under this paragraph. Corridor trail establishment must be in compliance with other state and federal law. Local governments and other trail sponsors may propose the designation of corridor trails, including the designation as a grant-in-aid trail for the purposes of funding under section 84.927, subdivision 2.

(b) The following forest roads shall be open to travel by all-terrain vehicles when the roads are open to other noncommercial vehicles:

(1) the Rapid River forest road, beginning at the west boundary of the Red Lake wildlife management area at the southwest corner of Section 7, Township 156 North, Range 35 West, Beltrami county, thence in an easterly and northeasterly direction through the Red Lake wildlife management area to the east boundary of the Red Lake wildlife management area at the southwest corner of Section 7, Township 157 North, Range 33 West, Lake of the Woods county;

(2) the Blanchard forest road, beginning at the junction of the North Shore Road along the northern shore of Upper Red Lake and the Blanchard state forest road at the west section line of Section 30, Township 155 North, Range 31 West, Beltrami county, thence in a westerly direction to the west section line of Section 31, Township 155 North, Range 32 West; and

(3) the Moose River forest road, beginning at the junction of Dick's Parkway state forest road and the Moose River state forest road at the southwest corner of Section 31, Township 36 West, Range 158 North, thence in a westerly direction along the Moose River state forest road to the junction of Beltrami county road 706.

(c) The commissioner shall sign each road and trail designated under this subdivision indicating the motorized uses allowed.

(d) For the purposes of this subdivision, "corridors of disturbance" means rights-of-way such as ditches, ditch banks, transmission lines, pipelines, permanent roads, winter roads, and recreational trails. The existence of a corridor of disturbance eligible for corridor designation may be demonstrated by physical evidence, document recorded in the office of the county recorder or other public official, aerial survey, or other evidence similar to the above. Cross-country motorized use of land shall not cause that land to be considered a corridor of disturbance.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

- Subd. 4. Agder wildlife management area, Marshall county.
- Subd. 5. Aitkin wildlife management area, Aitkin county.
- Subd. 6. Bear Creek wildlife management area, Roseau county.
- Subd. 7. Benville wildlife management area, Beltrami county.
- Subd. 8. Border wildlife management area, Roseau county.
- Subd. 9. Carmalee wildlife management area, Beltrami county.
- Subd. 10. Carp Swamp wildlife management area, Lake of the Woods county.
- Subd. 11. Cedar wildlife management area, Marshall county.
- Subd. 12. Cedarbend wildlife management area, Roseau county.
- Subd. 13. Clear River wildlife management area, Roseau county.
- Subd. 14. East Branch wildlife management area, Roseau county.
- Subd. 15. East Park wildlife management area, Marshall county.
- Subd. 16. Eckvoll wildlife management area, Marshall county.
- Subd. 17. Elm Lake wildlife management area, Marshall county.
- Subd. 18. Enstrom wildlife management area, Roseau county.
- Subd. 19. Espelie wildlife management area, Marshall county.
- Subd. 20. Fireweed wildlife management area, Beltrami county.
- Subd. 21. Foote wildlife management area, Mahnommen county.
- Subd. 22. Four Mile Bay wildlife management area, Lake of the Woods county.
- Subd. 23. Golden Valley wildlife management area, Roseau county.
- Subd. 24. Graceton wildlife management area, Lake of the Woods county.
- Subd. 25. Grayling Marsh wildlife management area, Aitkin county.
- Subd. 26. Grygla wildlife management area, Marshall county.
- Subd. 27. Gun Dog wildlife management area, Beltrami county.
- Subd. 28. Hamre wildlife management area, Beltrami county.
- Subd. 29. Hayes wildlife management area, Roseau county.
- Subd. 30. Huntly wildlife management area, Marshall county.
- Subd. 31. Killian wildlife management area, Mahnommen county.
- Subd. 32. Kimberly wildlife management area, Aitkin county.
- Subd. 33. Larry Bernhoft wildlife management area, Lake of the Woods county.
- Subd. 34. Lee wildlife management area, Beltrami county.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

- Subd. 35. Little Willow wildlife management area, Aitkin county.
- Subd. 36. Marbel wildlife management area, Roseau county.
- Subd. 37. McGregor Marsh wildlife management area, Aitkin county.
- Subd. 38. Moose River wildlife management area, Beltrami county.
- Subd. 39. Moylan wildlife management area, Marshall county.
- Subd. 40. Nereson wildlife management area, Roseau county.
- Subd. 41. New Maine wildlife management area, Marshall county.
- Subd. 42. Palmville wildlife management area, Marshall and Roseau counties.
- Subd. 43. Prosper wildlife management area, Lake of the Woods county.
- Subd. 44. Red Lake wildlife management area, Beltrami county.
- Subd. 45. Robert Wickstrom wildlife management area, Aitkin county.
- Subd. 46. Rocky Point wildlife management area, Lake of the Woods county.
- Subd. 47. Roseau Lake wildlife management area, Roseau county.
- Subd. 48. Rosver wildlife management area, Roseau county.
- Subd. 49. Salo wildlife management area, Aitkin county.
- Subd. 50. Saw-Whet wildlife management area, Beltrami county.
- Subd. 51. Sem wildlife management area, Marshall county.
- Subd. 52. Sharp wildlife management area, Marshall county.
- Subd. 53. Skime wildlife management area, Roseau county.
- Subd. 54. Snowshoe wildlife management area, Marshall county.
- Subd. 55. South Shore wildlife management area, Lake of the Woods and Roseau counties.
- Subd. 56. Spooner wildlife management area, Lake of the Woods county.
- Subd. 57. Thief Lake wildlife management area, Marshall county.
- Subd. 58. Valley wildlife management area, Marshall county.
- Subd. 59. Vanose wildlife management area, Mahnomen county.
- Subd. 60. Wabun wildlife management area, Mahnomen county.
- Subd. 61. Wannaska wildlife management area, Roseau county.
- Subd. 62. Wapiti wildlife management area, Beltrami county.
- Subd. 63. Willow Run wildlife management area, Beltrami county.
- Subd. 64. Willowsippi wildlife management area, Aitkin county.
- Subd. 65. Wolf Trail wildlife management area, Beltrami county.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 17. Minnesota Statutes 1998, section 97A.135, subdivision 2a, is amended to read:

Subd. 2a. **DISPOSAL OF LAND IN WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREAS.**

(a) The commissioner may sell or exchange land in a wildlife management area authorized by designation under section 86A.07, subdivision 3, 97A.133, or 97A.145 if the commissioner vacates the designation before the sale or exchange in accordance with this subdivision. The designation may be vacated only if the commissioner finds, after a public hearing, that the disposal of the land is in the public interest.

(b) A sale under this subdivision is subject to sections 94.09 to 94.16. An exchange under this subdivision is subject to sections 94.341 to 94.348.

(c) Revenue received from a sale authorized under paragraph (a) is appropriated to the commissioner for acquisition of replacement wildlife management lands.

(d) Land acquired by the commissioner under this subdivision must meet the criteria in section 86A.05, subdivision 8, and as soon as possible after the acquisition must be designated as a wildlife management area under section 86A.07, subdivision 3, 97A.133, or 97A.145.

(e) In acquiring land under this subdivision, the commissioner must give priority to land within the same geographic region of the state as the land conveyed.

Sec. 18. Minnesota Statutes 1998, section 477A.11, subdivision 3, is amended to read:

Subd. 3. **ACQUIRED NATURAL RESOURCES LAND.** "Acquired natural resources land" means:

(1) any land presently administered by the commissioner in which the state acquired by purchase, condemnation, or gift, a fee title interest in lands which were previously privately owned; and

(2) lands acquired by the state under chapter 84A that are designated as state parks, state recreation areas, scientific and natural areas, or wildlife management areas.

Sec. 19. Minnesota Statutes 1998, section 477A.11, subdivision 4, is amended to read:

Subd. 4. **OTHER NATURAL RESOURCES LAND.** "Other natural resources land" means:

(1) any other land presently owned in fee title by the state and administered by the commissioner, or any tax-forfeited land, other than platted lots within a city or those lands described under subdivision 3, clause (2), which is owned by the state and administered by the commissioner or by the county in which it is located; and

(2) land leased by the state from the United States of America through the United States Secretary of Agriculture pursuant to Title III of the Bankhead Jones Farm Tenant Act, which land is commonly referred to as land utilization project land that is administered by the commissioner.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Sec. 20. ADDITIONS TO STATE FORESTS.

Subdivision 1. [89.021] [Subd. 5.] BELTRAMI ISLAND STATE FOREST.
The following areas are added to Beltrami Island state forest:

(1) Lot 3 and Lot 4 of Section 4; Lot 1, Lot 3, and Lot 4 of Section 5; Lot 1, Lot 2, and Lot 3 of Section 6; all in Township 154 North, Range 34 West;

(2) E1/2-SW1/4 and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 20; SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 29; SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 31; NE1/4 of Section 32; NW1/4 and W1/2-SW1/4 of Section 33; E1/2 and NW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 34; SW1/4 of Section 35; all in Township 162 North, Range 35 West;

(3) all of Section 1; Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 2; Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 3; Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, S1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 4; Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 5; Lot 7, SE1/4-SW1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 6; all of Section 7; all of Section 8; N1/2, SW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 9; NE1/4-NE1/4, SW1/4-NE1/4, NW1/4, and N1/2-SW1/4 of Section 10; E1/2, E1/2-NW1/4, NW1/4-NW1/4, and E1/2-SW1/4 of Section 11; all of Section 12; all of Section 13; E1/2, E1/2-NE1/4-NW1/4, E1/2-SE1/4-NW1/4, E1/2-NE1/4-SW1/4, and E1/2-SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 14; SW1/4-NE1/4, W1/2, and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 15; SW1/4-NE1/4 lying north and east of state highway No. 89, SE1/4-NE1/4 lying north and east of state highway No. 89, SW1/4-NW1/4, S1/2-SW1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 16; NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 17; NW1/4-NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, E1/2-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 18; N1/2-NE1/4, SW1/4-NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, E1/2-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 19; E1/2-NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 20; N1/2-NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, and W1/2-NW1/4 of Section 21; NE1/4-NE1/4, that part of NE1/4-NW1/4 lying north and east of center line of state highway No. 89, SE1/4-SW1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 22; E1/2-SW1/4 and SE1/4 of Section 23; all of Section 24; all of Section 25; NE1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 26; NW1/4-NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 27; NE1/4-NE1/4 and SW1/4 of Section 29; E1/2, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, NE1/4-SW1/4, and Lot 3 of Section 30; S1/2-NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, E1/2-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, and SE1/4 of Section 31; all of Section 32; S1/2-NE1/4, W1/2, and SE1/4 of Section 33; NE1/4, east 165 feet of the north 1,320 feet of the NE1/4-NW1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, E1/2-SW1/4, SW1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 35; all of Section 36; all in Township 155 North, Range 36 West;

(4) E1/2, E1/2-NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 14; W1/2-NE1/4, W1/2, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 16; E1/2 and E1/2-SW1/4 of Section 17; NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, and Lot 3 of Section 18; SW1/4-NE1/4, E1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 19; S1/2-NE1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, SW1/4-SW1/4 except the West 20 rods of the South 16 rods; SE1/4-SW1/4, W1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 20; S1/2-NE1/4 and SE1/4 of Section 21; W1/2-SW1/4 and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 22; NE1/4, E1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 23; all of Section 26; NW1/4-NW1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 of

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Section 27; all of Section 28; N1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, SW1/4-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 29; E1/2 and NW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 32; N1/2, NE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 33; all of Section 34; all of Section 35; all in Township 156 North, Range 36 West;

(5) SE1/4 of Section 1; SW1/4 of Section 15; S1/2 of Section 16; SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 17; and Lot 1, Lot 2, SE1/4-NW1/4, E1/2-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, W1/2-NW1/4-SE1/4, and W1/2-SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 18; all in Township 161 North, Range 36 West;

(6) Lot 1 lying south of railroad, of Section 4, Township 162 North, Range 36 West;

(7) NW1/4-NE1/4, S1/2-NE1/4, W1/2, N1/2-SE1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 13; all of Section 14; all of Section 15; E1/2 and N1/2-NW1/4 of Section 16; N1/2, E1/2-SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, SW1/4-SE1/4 less 2 acres in the southeast corner thereof, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 22; N1/2, SW1/4, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 23; N1/2-NW1/4 of Section 24; NW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 25; W1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NE1/4, W1/2, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 26; E1/2 and NE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 27; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 28; NE1/4 and E1/2-NW1/4 of Section 32; N1/2, W1/2-SE1/4, SE1/4-SE1/4 except the South 50 rods of the East 32 rods thereof, of Section 33; all of Section 34; S1/2-NE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, W1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 35; NE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 36; all in Township 156 North, Range 37 West;

(8) Lot 1, Lot 2, and S1/2-NE1/4 of Section 2; SE1/4-NE1/4, S1/2-SW1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 10; S1/2-SW1/4 and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 11; all in Township 161 North, Range 37 West;

(9) NE1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, SE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 3, and Lot 4 of Section 7; E1/2-NW1/4, and SW1/4 of Section 8; S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 15; N1/2-SW1/4 and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 16; N1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 17; all of Section 18; NW1/4 of Section 20; NE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 21; all in Township 159 North, Range 38 West; and

(10) SE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 25, Township 161 North, Range 38 West.

Subd. 2. [89.021] [Subd. 24.] HILL RIVER STATE FOREST. The following areas are added to the Hill River state forest:

(1) Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 1; S1/2-NE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4 and S1/2 of Section 2; S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 3; Lot 1, S1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, S1/2-SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 4; Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, E1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 5; Lot 1, S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, Lot 5, SE1/4-NW1/4, and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 6; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, SE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 7; N1/2-NE1/4, that part of the SW1/4-NE1/4 beginning at the southwest corner of the SW1/4-NE1/4, north 20 rods along the west quarter line, east 8 rods, south 20 rods to quarter line, west along quarter line to point

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

of beginning, SE1/4-NE1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 8; W1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 9; NW1/4 of Section 10; W1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, and E1/2-SW1/4 of Section 13; N1/2-SW1/4, SW1/4-SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 15; NE1/4 and SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 17; NE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 18; Lot 4 of Section 19; S1/2-NE1/4 and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 20; NE1/4-NE1/4, S1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, SE1/4-SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 21; SW1/4, NW1/4-SE1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 22; S1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, SW1/4-SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 23; Lot 6 and Lot 7 of Section 24; Lot 1, Lot 3, Lot 4, Lot 2, NE1/4-SE1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 25; N1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4-SE1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 26; N1/2, N1/2-SW1/4, SE1/4-SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 27; NE1/4-NE1/4, S1/2-NE1/4, and NE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 28; Lot 1, Lot 2, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, SE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 30; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 2, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, SE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 31; NE1/4, N1/2-NW1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, S1/2-SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 32; NW1/4-NE1/4, S1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, SE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 33; SW1/4-NE1/4, SE1/4-NE1/4 less south 10 acres, and S1/2 of Section 34; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, Lot 1, and Lot 2 of Section 35; all in Township 50 North, Range 25 West; and

(2) a 33-foot roadway along the westerly line of E1/2-NE1/4 and NE1/4-SE1/4 and over and across the NE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 26, Township 52 North, Range 26 West.

Subd. 3. [89.021] [Subd. 30a.] LAKE OF THE WOODS STATE FOREST.
The following areas are added to Lake of the Woods state forest:

(1) N1/2-SE1/4 and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 5; SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 11; all of Section 26; all in Township 158 North, Range 30 West;

(2) SE1/4-SW1/4 and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 8; W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 9; SW1/4-NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, and SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 21; all in Township 159 North, Range 30 West;

(3) Lot 2 of Section 3; N1/2-SW1/4 of Section 20; all in Township 157 North, Range 31 West;

(4) a tract of land in the SE1/4-NE1/4 beginning at a point where the western boundary of the right-of-way of state trunk highway No. 72 intersects the southern boundary of the SE1/4-NE1/4; thence West along the southern boundary a distance of 150 feet to a point; thence North at right angles a distance of 80 feet to a point; thence East parallel to the southern boundary a distance of 150 feet to a point in the western boundary line of right-of-way; thence South along the western boundary of right-of-way a distance of 80 feet to place of beginning, of Section 1; NE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 3; SW1/4-NW1/4 beginning at a point 700 feet north from 1/4 post on the section line between Sections 16 and 17; North 82 1/2 feet; East 528 feet; South 82 1/2 feet; West 528 feet to point of beginning, of Section 16; all in Township 158 North, Range 31 West;

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout:

(5) E1/2-NE1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 28; NE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 33; NW1/4-NW1/4 and S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 35; all in Township 159 North, Range 31 West;

(6) SW1/4, Lot 3, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 13; NE1/4-NE1/4, S1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, SW1/4, W1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 14; all in Township 158 North, Range 32 West;

(7) all of Section 12; SE1/4-NE1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, S1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 13; N1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NE1/4, W1/2, and SE1/4 of Section 15; W1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NE1/4, W1/2, and SE1/4 of Section 25; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 26; all of Section 35; W1/2, N1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 36; all in Township 159 North, Range 32 West;

(8) SW1/4-NE1/4, SE1/4-NE1/4 except the North 208.7 feet of the East 208.7 feet thereof, SE1/4-NW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 1; SE1/4-NW1/4 and N1/2-SW1/4 of Section 20; all in Township 160 North, Range 32 West;

(9) SW1/4-SW1/4 commencing at a point on the west boundary of the SW1/4 distant 53.06 feet south along said west boundary from its intersection with the center line of the Minnesota and Manitoba Railroad as now constructed across said land; thence South 70 degrees 27 minutes East, parallel with the center line of said railroad, 1,548.25 feet; thence South 19 degrees 33 minutes West perpendicular to said center line of railroad, 216 feet; thence North 70 degrees 27 minutes West parallel to said center line of railroad 1,471.55 feet more or less, to the west boundary of said SW1/4; thence North along said west boundary 229.21 feet to place of beginning, and SW1/4-SW1/4 beginning at a point on north boundary state rural highway No. 32, 177.88 feet easterly from southeast corner of Lot 14, Block 4, Pitt; going North 19 degrees 14 minutes East 139 1/2 feet; South 70 degrees 46 minutes East 50 feet; South 19 degrees 14 minutes West 139 1/2 feet to north boundary state rural highway No. 32; northwest along said boundary 50 feet to beginning, of Section 35, Township 161 North, Range 32 West;

(10) Lot 4 of Section 30, Township 161 North, Range 33 West;

(11) NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, and SE1/4 of Section 7; SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 8; all in Township 163 North, Range 33 West;

(12) SW1/4-NE1/4 and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 14, Township 161 North, Range 34 West;

(13) NW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 11; E1/2 of W1/2 of SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 14; S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 16; SE1/4-NW1/4 and E1/2-SW1/4 of Section 21; E1/2-NW1/4 and NE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 28; SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 33; SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 34; all in Township 162 North, Range 34 West; and

(14) SE1/4 of Section 11; SW1/4 and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 12; NE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 14; SW1/4 of Section 16; SE1/4-NE1/4 and S1/2-NW1/4 of Section 22; SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 25; SE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 27; NE1/4-SW1/4 and N1/2-

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

SE1/4 of Section 34; N1/2-SW1/4 and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 35; all in Township 163 North, Range 34 West.

Subd. 4. [89.021] [Subd. 31a.] LOST RIVER STATE FOREST. The following areas are added to Lost River state forest:

(1) SE1/4-SW1/4 and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 2; S1/2-SW1/4 and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 5; SE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 19; N1/2-NW1/4 of Section 23; SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 30; W1/2-NE1/4 of Section 35; all in Township 163 North, Range 37 West;

(2) E1/2-NW1/4 of Section 35, Township 164 North, Range 37 West;

(3) N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 3; that part of NE1/4-NE1/4 north of highway, of Section 10; NW1/4 and SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 12; NE1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, and NW1/4-SE1/4 except the part previously conveyed for highway purposes and recorded as document number 120815 in Book 221 of Miscellaneous, page 39, with the office of the Roseau county register of deeds, of Section 14; NE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 32; all in Township 162 North, Range 38 West;

(4) NW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 24; NE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 25; SW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 34; all in Township 163 North, Range 38 West;

(5) Lot 7, Lot 8, Lot 5, and Lot 6 of Section 26; Lot 7, Lot 8, Lot 5, and Lot 6 of Section 27; all in Township 164 North, Range 39 West; and

(6) SE1/4 of Section 5, Township 163 North, Range 40 West.

Subd. 5. [89.021] [Subd. 40.] PINE ISLAND STATE FOREST. The following areas are added to Pine Island state forest:

(1) W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 1; Lot 3, Lot 4, Lot 5, and SE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 6; NW1/4-NE1/4 and SE1/4 of Section 8; NE1/4-NW1/4, E1/2-NW1/4-NW1/4, SW1/4-NW1/4-NW1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, E1/2-SW1/4, W1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 9; NE1/4-NE1/4, SW1/4, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 10; SE1/4-NW1/4 and NE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 11; SW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 12; W1/2-NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 13; W1/2-NE1/4 and NE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 14; N1/2-NE1/4, SW1/4-NW1/4, W1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 15; NE1/4 and SW1/4 of Section 16; SW1/4-NE1/4, W1/2, and SE1/4 of Section 17; NE1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, SE1/4-SW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 18; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 1, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 19; NE1/4, N1/2-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, S1/2-SW1/4, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 20; N1/2, SW1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 21; W1/2-NE1/4, N1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 22; NE1/4-SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 23; NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 24; all of Section 25; NE1/4, SW1/4-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 26; N1/2 and W1/2-SW1/4 of Section 27; NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, and N1/2-SW1/4 of Section 28; W1/2-NW1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, SW1/4, NE1/4-SE1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 29; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, and SE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 30; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, SE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 31; all of Section 32; S1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 33; all of Section 34; all of

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikethrough.

Section 35; all of Section 36; all in Township 159 North, Range 27 West;

(2) Lot 1, SE1/4-NE1/4, and NE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 1; Lot 2, SW1/4-NE1/4, Lot 3, S1/2-NW1/4, and E1/2-SW1/4 of Section 2; SW1/4 and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 13; all in Township 159 North, Range 28 West;

(3) NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 19; SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 29; S1/2-NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, SE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 30; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, SE1/4-NW1/4, SE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 31; N1/2-NE1/4, SW1/4-NE1/4, NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, S1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 32; NE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 34; all in Township 160 North, Range 28 West;

(4) Lot 2, SW1/4-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, Lot 5, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, and Lot 6 of Section 6, Township 159 North, Range 29 West; and

(5) SW1/4-NE1/4 of Section 7; E1/2-SW1/4, W1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 9; W1/2-NE1/4, W1/2, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 13; NE1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 14; NE1/4, N1/2-NW1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 15; SE1/4-NE1/4 and S1/2 of Section 16; SE1/4 of Section 17; all of Section 21; all of Section 22; all of Section 23; W1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NE1/4, W1/2, and SE1/4 of Section 24; all of Section 25; all of Section 26; all of Section 27; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, W1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 28; SW1/4 and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 29; NW1/4-NE1/4, E1/2-SW1/4, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 31; SE1/4-NE1/4 and E1/2-SE1/4 of Section 33; all of Section 34; all of Section 35; all of Section 36; all in Township 160 North, Range 29 West.

Subd. 6. [89.021] [Subd. 41.] RED LAKE STATE FOREST. The following areas are added to Red Lake state forest:

(1) N1/2-NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, NW1/4-NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4-NW1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 13; NW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 14; N1/2, SW1/4, and N1/2-NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 15; SE1/4-NE1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, and NE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 16; SW1/4-NE1/4 except the North 165 feet thereof, SE1/4-NE1/4 except the North 330 feet thereof, and NW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 21; S1/2-NW1/4-NE1/4, SW1/4-NE1/4, W1/2-SE1/4-NE1/4, and NE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 22; NE1/4, E1/2-SE1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 24; NW1/4 and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 27; S1/2-NE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 28; NW1/4-NW1/4 and SE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 29; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 1, NE1/4-SW1/4, and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 30; SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 32; NW1/4-NE1/4 of Section 33; all in Township 152 North, Range 30 West;

(2) Lot 3, Lot 4, Lot 5, and SE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 6; W1/2-NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1, and Lot 2 of Section 7; Lot 4 and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 18; W1/2-NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1 except the North 30 acres, Lot 2, E1/2-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 19; all in Township 153 North, Range 30 West;

(3) Lot 5, Section 5, Township 154 North, Range 30 West;

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

(4) Lot 1, SE1/4-NE1/4, Lot 3, SE1/4-NW1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 4; Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 5; Lot 1, Lot 2, and S1/2-NE1/4 of Section 6; N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 7; SW1/4-NE1/4, NW1/4-NW1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, and NE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 8; W1/2-NE1/4 and N1/2-NW1/4 of Section 17; NE1/4-NE1/4 and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 19; NW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 20; N1/2-NE1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, and S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 21; E1/2, E1/2-NW1/4, NW1/4-NW1/4, and NE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 22; NW1/4-NE1/4, Lot 1, Lot 4, NW1/4-NW1/4, Lot 5, Lot 2, Lot 3, Lot 6, SW1/4-SW1/4, NE1/4-SE1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 25; N1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NE1/4, N1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4-NW1/4, and Lot 2 of Section 26; NW1/4-NE1/4 of Section 27; N1/2-NW1/4, S1/2-SW1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 28; NW1/4-NE1/4, NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 29; E1/2-NE1/4, SW1/4-NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 2, and NE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 30; NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, E1/2-SW1/4, and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 32; NW1/4-NE1/4 of Section 33; S1/2-NE1/4 of Section 34; Lot 2, Lot 6, SE1/4-NE1/4, SW1/4-NW1/4, Lot 7, Lot 8, and NW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 35; all in Township 152 North, Range 31 West;

(5) E1/2-NE1/4, SW1/4-NE1/4, SE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 1; W1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 11; N1/2 and NW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 12; SW1/4 of Section 13; SW1/4-NW1/4 and S1/2 of Section 14; SW1/4-NE1/4 and S1/2 of Section 15; N1/2-SE1/4 and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 16; E1/2-SE1/4 and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 18; NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, E1/2-SW1/4, and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 19; W1/2-NW1/4 of Section 20; S1/2-NW1/4 of Section 21; W1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4-NW1/4, SE1/4-SW1/4-NW1/4, E1/2-SW1/4, SW1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 28; SW1/4-NE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 29; S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 2, SE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, SE1/4-SW1/4, W1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 30; all in Township 153 North, Range 31 West;

(6) S1/2-NE1/4 and SE1/4 of Section 1; S1/2-NE1/4-SW1/4, W1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 2; Lot 1, Lot 7, Lot 8, and Lot 11 of Section 3; Lot 1, Lot 4, Lot 5, and Lot 8 of Section 10; W1/2-NW1/4 of Section 11; NE1/4-SW1/4 and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 12; NE1/4-NE1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, SW1/4-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 except the South 242 feet of the East 275 feet thereof, of Section 13; S1/2-SW1/4-SW1/4, SE1/4-SW1/4, NE1/4-SE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4-SE1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 14; Lot 1, Lot 4, and Lot 5 of Section 15; W1/2 and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 23; SW1/4-NE1/4, W1/2, NW1/4-SE1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 25; NE1/4-NE1/4, S1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4, E1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 26; Lot 1 and SE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 27; Lot 1 and Lot 3 of Section 34; NE1/4-NW1/4 and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 35; NW1/4-NE1/4 and N1/2-NW1/4 of Section 36; all in Township 152 North, Range 32 West; and

(7) Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, West 150 feet of the East 675 feet of Lot 3; East 150 feet of Lot 3, Lot 5, Lot 6, and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 23; E1/2, SE1/4-NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 24; all in Township 153 North, Range 32 West.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

Subd. 7. **[89.021] [Subd. 46.] SAVANNA STATE FOREST.** The following areas are added to the Savanna state forest:

(1) Lot 2, SW1/4-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, NW1/4-SE1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 1; Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 2; Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, SE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 3; Lot 2, Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 4; Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 3, N1/2-SE1/4, and road right-of-way of 4.58 acres in SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 5; all of Section 11; NE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 12; NE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 13; SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 14; SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 21; NE1/4 and NE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 22; N1/2-NE1/4 and NW1/4 of Section 23; NW1/4-NE1/4 and four rods for road right-of-way in SW1/4-NE1/4 of Section 26; N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 27; SE1/4-SW1/4 and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 28; Lot 2 of Section 30; N1/2-NE1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 31; NE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 32; NE1/4, N1/2-NW1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, NE1/4-SE1/4, Lot 2, and Lot 1 of Section 33; NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 34; all in Township 48 North, Range 22 West; and

(2) NW1/4-SW1/4 and S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 5; NE1/4-SE1/4 and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 6; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4 except the west 350 feet of the south 1,000 feet, SE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 7; W1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 8; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, NW1/4-SE1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 18; S1/2-NE1/4 except part north of railroad right-of-way, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 24; S1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 25; S1/2-NW1/4 of Section 26; Lot 1, Lot 6, Lot 5, Lot 4, Lot 2, Lot 3, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 32; all of Section 33; W1/2-NE1/4, W1/2-NW1/4, NW1/4-SW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 34; S1/2-NE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 35; NW1/4-SW1/4 and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 36; all in Township 48 North, Range 23 West.

Subd. 8. **[89.021] [Subd. 49.] SOLANA STATE FOREST.** The following area is added to the Solana state forest: N1/2-NW1/4 of Section 22, Township 46 North, Range 23 West.

Subd. 9. **[89.021] [Subd. 51a.] WAUKENABO STATE FOREST.** The following areas are added to the Waukenabo state forest:

(1) S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 28, Township 48 North, Range 25 West;

(2) Lot 3 of Section 2; Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4 and Lot 5 of Section 3; SE1/4-SW1/4, NW1/4-SE1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 5; Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, and Lot 6 of Section 6; NE1/4 less railroad right-of-way, NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, SE1/4-SW1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 7; SW1/4-NE1/4, NW1/4-NW1/4 less railroad right-of-way, SW1/4-NW1/4 less railroad right-of-way, SE1/4-NW1/4 less railroad right-of-way, NE1/4-SW1/4 less railroad right-of-way, NE1/4-SE1/4, NW1/4-SE1/4 less railroad right-of-way, a 50 foot strip along the northeasterly side of the railroad right-of-way in SW1/4-SE1/4, and Lot 1 less railroad right-of-way of Section

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

8; Lot 1, Lot 2, SW1/4-NE1/4, Lot 4, Lot 3, Lot 6, Lot 5, Lot 7, and SE1/4 of Section 9; NW1/4-NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, and N1/2-SW1/4 of Section 10; Lot 4 of Section 11; NE1/4-NE1/4 less railroad right-of-way, S1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4, SW1/4, NW1/4-SE1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 17; Lots 3 and 4 of Section 18; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 5, and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 19; Lot 4, Lot 5, and Lot 3 of Section 20; Lot 10 of Section 21; all in Township 49 North, Range 25 West;

(3) East 33 feet of N1/2-NE1/4 of Section 13; SW1/4-NE1/4 except part in Aitkin Municipal Airport runway clear zone, NE1/4-SW1/4 except part in Aitkin Municipal Airport runway clear zone, and NE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 18; that part of NE1/4-SW1/4 lying north of Soo Railway right-of-way in Section 19; SW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 20; NE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 21; NW1/4 of Section 23; S1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4-SE1/4, and W1/2-NE1/4-SE1/4 less railroad right-of-way of Section 24; all in Township 47 North, Range 26 West;

(4) Lot 4, Lot 5, Lot 6, and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 1; Lot 7 of Section 2; NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, SW1/4-SW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 3; NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, W1/2-SW1/4-SW1/4, SE1/4-SW1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 4; N1/2-NE1/4, SW1/4-NE1/4, N1/2-NW1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, E1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 5; N1/2, SW1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 6; N1/2-NE1/4, SW1/4-NE1/4, NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, SE1/4-SW1/4, NW1/4-SE1/4, and W1/2-SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 7; E1/2 of W1/2-SE1/4-NW1/4 and NW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 8; S1/2-NE1/4-NW1/4 and NW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 9; Lot 1 of Section 11; W1/2-NE1/4, N1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, S1/2-SW1/4, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 13; NW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 17; Lot 4, Lot 5, Lot 1, and Lot 2 of Section 21; SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 23; W1/2-NW1/4 and NW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 24; south 66 feet of S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 27; Lot 6, NE1/4-SE1/4, Lot 5, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 28; NE1/4-NE1/4, Lot 10, Lot 9, Lot 8, Lot 7, and Lot 6 of Section 33; that part of SW1/4-NW1/4 west of lagoon, and SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 34; all in Township 48 North, Range 26 West;

(5) Lot 1, Lot 3, Lot 4, SE1/4-NE1/4, SW1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 1; Lot 1, S1/2-NE1/4, and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 2; Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, and NE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 3; Lot 3 of Section 10; NE1/4-NE1/4 and S1/2-NE1/4 of Section 12; E1/2-E1/2-NE1/4, W1/2-NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 13; Lot 2 except Lot 2, Block 1, Waukenabo Homesites according to the plat thereof on file in the Aitkin County Recorder's Office, and Lot 3 of Section 15; SE1/4-NE1/4, SE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 21; Lot 3, Lot 2, NW1/4-NW1/4, and S1/2-NW1/4 of Section 22; SE1/4-NW1/4 and S1/2 of Section 25; E1/2-SE1/4 of Section 27; W1/2-NE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 28; E1/2-SE1/4 of Section 29; NE1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, N1/2-NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, SE1/4-SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 31; NW1/4-NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, NW1/4-SW1/4, and S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 32; all of Section 33; NE1/4-NE1/4 and NE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 35; all in Township 49 North, Range 26 West; and

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout-

(6) N1/2-NE1/4, SW1/4-NE1/4, NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 1; Lot 4, Lot 5, Lot 6, Lot 7, NW1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SE1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 11; NW1/4-NW1/4 and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 12; N1/2-NE1/4, SW1/4-NE1/4, NW1/4, SW1/4, and south 66 feet of S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 13; E1/2-SE1/4 of Section 15; W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 24; N1/2, SW1/4, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 25; NW1/4-NW1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 26; N1/2-NE1/4 except that part lying south of the south bank of state ditch number 63, S1/2-NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4 except that part lying south of the south bank of state ditch number 63, NW1/4-NW1/4 except that part lying south of the south bank of state ditch number 63 and east of county road number 24, SW1/4-NW1/4 except that part lying east of county road number 24, and S1/2 of Section 27; E1/2-NE1/4 of Section 34; all in Township 48 North, Range 27 West.

Subd. 10. [89.021] [Subd. 52.] WEALTHWOOD STATE FOREST. The following areas are added to the Wealthwood state forest:

(1) 198 feet by 333 feet of Lot 4 in southwest corner on lakeshore of Section 22, Township 45 North, Range 26 West; and

(2) N1/2-SW1/4, NW1/4-SE1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 10; NE1/4-NE1/4, S1/2-NE1/4, and E1/2-SE1/4 of Section 15; N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 22; SE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 2, and Lot 1 of Section 27; all in Township 45 North, Range 27 West.

Subd. 11. [89.021] [Subd. 54.] WHITE EARTH STATE FOREST. The following area is added to White Earth state forest: SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 26, Township 146 North, Range 40 West.

Sec. 21. ADDITIONS TO STATE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREAS.

Subdivision 1. [97A.133] [Subd. 4.] AGDER WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; MARSHALL COUNTY. The following area is added to Agder wildlife management area: the NE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 34, Township 155 North, Range 42 West.

Subd. 2. [97A.133] [Subd. 5.] AITKIN WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; AITKIN COUNTY. The following areas are added to the Aitkin wildlife management area:

(1) NE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 35; NE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 36; all in Township 48 North, Range 26 West; and

(2) Lot 1, Lot 2, Lot 3, Lot 4, Lot 5, Lots 6, 7, 8 and 9 except that part described as follows: Beginning at the southeast corner of Lot 9; thence North 01 degree 24 minutes 00 seconds West, bearing assumed, 35.90 feet along the east line of said Lot 9 to a MN DNR PROPERTY MONUMENT; thence North 83 degrees 38 minutes 02 seconds West 583.71 feet to a MN DNR PROPERTY MONUMENT; thence North 88 degrees 21 minutes 17 seconds West 708.45 feet to a MN DNR PROPERTY MONUMENT; thence North 01 degree 30 minute 00 seconds West 581.69 feet to a MN DNR PROPERTY MONUMENT; thence North 05 degrees 44 minutes 53 seconds West 730.71 feet to a MN DNR PROPERTY MONUMENT; thence South 88 degrees

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

58 minutes 00 seconds West 16.50 feet to Point "A"; thence continuing South 88 degrees 58 minutes 00 seconds West 2736.11 feet to the west line of said Lot 6; thence South 01 degree 29 minutes 49 seconds East 1369.69 feet along the west line of Lots 6 and 11 to a steel fence post at the south west corner of Lot 11; thence South 89 degrees 51 minutes 05 seconds East 4093.95 feet along the south line of Lots 11, 10 and 9 to the point of beginning, Lot 12 except that part described as follows: Beginning at the southwest corner of Lot 12, thence North 01 degree 31 minutes 08 seconds West, bearing assumed, 403.50 feet along the west line of said Lot 12; thence North 88 degrees 30 minutes 11 seconds East 984.65 feet; thence North 01 degree 29 minutes 49 seconds West 507.30 feet; thence North 88 degrees 30 minutes 11 seconds East 380.00 feet to the east line of said Lot 12; thence South 01 degree 29 minutes 49 seconds East 950.00 feet along said east line to a steel fence post at the southeast corner of said Lot 12; thence North 89 degrees 51 minutes 05 seconds West 1365.06 feet along the south line of said Lot 12 to the point of beginning, of Section 1; Lot 4, Lot 3, Lot 6, Lot 5, Lot 12, Lot 11 and SE1/4 of Section 2; Lot 10 and Lot 11 except highway right-of-way of Section 3; S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 11; NE1/4-NW1/4 and SW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 14; S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 22; all in Township 47 North, Range 26 West.

Subd. 3. [97A.133] [Subd. 7.] BENVILLE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; BELTRAMI COUNTY. The following area is added to Benville wildlife management area: the S1/2-NW1/4 of Section 34, Township 156 North, Range 38 West.

Subd. 4. [97A.133] [Subd. 9.] CARMALEE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; BELTRAMI COUNTY. The following areas are added to Carmalee wildlife management area:

(1) Lot 1, Lot 2, Lot 3, and Lot 4 of Section 3; Lot 1 of Section 4; Lot 2, Lot 3, and Lot 4 of Section 5; Lot 1, Lot 2, Lot 3, and Lot 4 of Section 6; all in Township 154 North, Range 38 West; and

(2) NE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 27; NW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 28; all in Township 155 North, Range 38 West.

Subd. 5. [97A.133] [Subd. 10.] CARP SWAMP WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; LAKE OF THE WOODS COUNTY. The following areas are added to Carp Swamp wildlife management area:

(1) Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 1; Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 2; Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 3; S1/2-SW1/4, NE1/4-SE1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 9; NE1/4 and S1/2 of Section 10; all of Section 11; NW1/4-NE1/4, NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 12; N1/2, N1/2-SW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 13; N1/2 and N1/2-SW1/4 of Section 14; all of Section 15; all of Section 16; N1/2, N1/2-SW1/4, SE1/4-SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 21; NW1/4-NE1/4, S1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 22; S1/2-NE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 23; SW1/4-NE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 24; NW1/4 and N1/2-SW1/4 of Section 25; N1/2, N1/2-SW1/4, SW1/4-SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Section 26; NE1/4, N1/2-NW1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, S1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 27; E1/2-NE1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 28; NE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 33; N1/2, N1/2-SW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 34; S1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4-NW1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 35; all in Township 159 North, Range 31 West; and

(2) SW1/4, Lot 3, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 13; S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 14; E1/2-SE1/4 of Section 22; NE1/4-NE1/4 except N1/2 of N1/2, NW1/4-NE1/4, S1/2-NE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 23; SW1/4-NE1/4, NW1/4-NW1/4 except North 330 feet, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, W1/2-SE1/4, and Lot 4 except the north 330 feet of Section 24; all of Section 25; all of Section 26; NE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 27; N1/2, N1/2-SW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, N1/2-SE1/4, Lot 3, and Lot 4 of Section 35; N1/2, N1/2-SW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, N1/2-SE1/4, Lot 3, and Lot 4 of Section 36; all in Township 160 North, Range 31 West.

Subd. 6. [97A.133] [Subd. 11.] CEDAR WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; MARSHALL COUNTY. The following area is added to Cedar wildlife management area: the SE1/4-NW1/4 and W1/2-NE1/4 a strip of land 2 rods wide, lying 1 rod on either side of the quarter line running north and south through Section 14; NE1/4 of Section 29; all in Township 157 North, Range 42 West.

Subd. 7. [97A.133] [Subd. 16.] ECKVOLL WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; MARSHALL COUNTY. The following area is added to Eckvoll wildlife management area: the SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 22, Township 156 North, Range 40 West.

Subd. 8. [97A.133] [Subd. 17.] ELM LAKE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; MARSHALL COUNTY. The following areas are added to Elm Lake wildlife management area:

(1) SW1/4 of Section 4, Township 155 North, Range 41 West; and

(2) Lot 2 of Section 10, Township 155 North, Range 42 West.

Subd. 9. [97A.133] [Subd. 19.] ESPELIE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; MARSHALL COUNTY. The following areas are added to Espelie wildlife management area:

(1) SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 6, Township 155 North, Range 39 West; and

(2) SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 28; Lot 1 of Section 31; SE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 34; all in Township 156 North, Range 39 West.

Subd. 10. [97A.133] [Subd. 21.] FOOTE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; MAHOMEN COUNTY. The following area is added to the Foote wildlife management area: SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 11, Township 146 North, Range 42 West.

Subd. 11. [97A.133] [Subd. 22.] FOUR MILE BAY WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; LAKE OF THE WOODS COUNTY. The following area is added to Four Mile Bay wildlife management area: Lot 1, Lot 3, Lot 2, NE1/4-SW1/4, S1/2-SW1/4, Lot 4, and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 13; Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-SW1/4, Lot

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

1, Lot 2, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 14; Lot 3, Lot 5, Lot 4, and Lot 6 of Section 15; Lot 8 of Section 16; N1/2-NW1/4 of Section 23; all in Township 162 North, Range 32 West.

Subd. 12. [97A.133] [Subd. 24.] GRACETON WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; LAKE OF THE WOODS COUNTY. The following areas are added to Graceton wildlife management area:

(1) SW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 4; Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 5; Lot 1, S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 5, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 6, Lot 7, SE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 6; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, SE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 7; NW1/4-NW1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, and SW1/4 of Section 8; SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 9; W1/2-NE1/4, N1/2-NW1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 11; W1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 16; N1/2 and SW1/4 of Section 17; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 1, E1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 18; NE1/4 and E1/2-NW1/4 of Section 19; NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 20; NE1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 21; NW1/4-NE1/4, S1/2-NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, E1/2-SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 22; SE1/4-NW1/4 and SW1/4 of Section 26; W1/2-NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, and E1/2-SE1/4 of Section 27; NE1/4 of Section 28; NW1/4 of Section 35; all in Township 161 North, Range 32 West;

(2) S1/2-SW1/4 and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 32, Township 162 North, Range 32 West;

(3) Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, and SW1/4 of Section 1; Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 2; Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 3; SE1/4-NW1/4 and S1/2 of Section 4; NE1/4 and SE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 9; NW1/4-NE1/4, S1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 10; N1/2 and N1/2-SW1/4 of Section 11; NE1/4-NW1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, West 50 feet of NW1/4-SE1/4, West 50 feet and South 50 feet of SW1/4-SE1/4, and South 50 feet of SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 12; all in Township 161 North, Range 33 West; and

(4) SW1/4-NW1/4 and SW1/4 of Section 25; S1/2-NE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 26; NE1/4, NW1/4-NW1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 35; NW1/4 and S1/2 of Section 36; all in Township 162 North, Range 33 West.

Subd. 13. [97A.133] [Subd 25.] GRAYLING MARSH WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; AITKIN COUNTY. The following areas are added to the Grayling Marsh wildlife management area: S1/2-NE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2 of section 21; SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 22; that part of N1/2-SE1/4 north of railroad right-of-way of Section 23; N1/2-NE1/4 and that part of S1/2-NE1/4 north of railroad right-of-way of Section 24; and NW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 28; all in Township 48 North, Range 23 West.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

Subd. 14. [97A.133] [Subd. 26.] GRYGLA WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; MARSHALL COUNTY. The following areas are added to Grygla wildlife management area:

- (1) S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 2, Township 156 North, Range 39 West; and
- (2) SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 25; and SE1/4-NE1/4 and NE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 35; all in Township 157 North, Range 39 West.

Subd. 15. [97A.133] [Subd. 27.] GUN DOG WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; BELTRAMI COUNTY. The following area is added to Gun Dog wildlife management area: NW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 12, Township 155 North, Range 37 West.

Subd. 16. [97A.133] [Subd. 28.] HAMRE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; BELTRAMI COUNTY. The following area is added to Hamre wildlife management area: the N1/2-NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, SE1/4-SW1/4, and NE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 25; SW1/4-NW1/4, SW1/4, W1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 26; S1/2-NE1/4 and S1/2 of Section 27; E1/2-SW1/4 of Section 28; SW1/4-NE1/4 and S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 29; E1/2-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, and SE1/4 of Section 31; all of Section 32; all of Section 33; NE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 34; W1/2-NE1/4, W1/2, and SE1/4 of Section 35; W1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 36; all in Township 155 North, Range 37 West.

Subd. 17. [97A.133] [Subd. 31.] KILLIAN WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; MAHONOMEN COUNTY. The following area is added to the Killian wildlife management area: Lot 1 of Section 10, Township 146 North, Range 41 West.

Subd. 18. [97A.133] [Subd. 32.] KIMBERLY WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; AITKIN COUNTY. The following area is added to the Kimberly wildlife management area: S1/2-NE1/4 excepting therefrom the following described tract: commencing at the intersection of the north side of the Northern Pacific Railway and the east side of the public road on the east side of the SW1/4-NE1/4, thence east 264 feet, thence north 165 feet, thence west 264 feet, thence south 165 feet to the place of beginning, SE1/4-NW1/4, excepting therefrom the following described tract: commencing at the point of intersection of the west line of the public road established on and along the north and south quarter line of Section 33 and the north line of the Northern Pacific right-of-way 200 feet northerly at right angles from the center of the main track of said railway; and thence north 208 feet along the west line of said public road, thence west at right angles 208 feet, thence south at right angles to the north line of said railway 200 feet northerly at right angles from the center of the main track of said railway, thence easterly along the north line of the right-of-way of said railway to the point of commencement, of Section 33, Township 48 North, Range 24 West.

Subd. 19. [97A.133] [Subd. 33.] LARRY BERNHOFT WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; LAKE OF THE WOODS COUNTY. The following area is added to Larry Bernhoft wildlife management area: the SW1/4-NE1/4 and Lot 4 of Section 2, Township 163 North, Range 34 West.

Subd. 20. [97A.133] [Subd. 34.] LEE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; BELTRAMI COUNTY. The following areas are added to Lee wildlife management

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

area: Lot 1, Lot 2, Lot 3, and Lot 4 of Section 2, Township 154 North, Range 38 West.

Subd. 21. [97A.133] [Subd. 35.] LITTLE WILLOW WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; AITKIN COUNTY. The following area is added to the Little Willow wildlife management area: N1/2-SE1/4 and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 19; E1/2-NE1/4-SW1/4 and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 20; NW1/4-NE1/4 of Section 30; all in Township 49 North, Range 26 West.

Subd. 22. [97A.133] [Subd. 36.] MARBEL WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; ROSEAU COUNTY. The following area is added to Marbel wildlife management area: the NW1/4-SE1/4 and Lot 3 of Section 35, Township 159 North, Range 38 West.

Subd. 23. [97A.133] [Subd. 37.] MCGREGOR MARSH WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; AITKIN COUNTY. The following areas are added to the McGregor Marsh wildlife management area:

(1) NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, N1/2-SE1/4-SW1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 19; and N1/2-NE1/4, that part of SW1/4-NE1/4 lying northwest of railroad right-of-way, N1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4-NW1/4, and SE1/4-NW1/4 except that part lying southeast of railroad right-of-way of Section 29; all in Township 48 North, Range 23 West; and

(2) S1/2-NE1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 24, Township 48 North, Range 24 West.

Subd. 24. [97A.133] [Subd. 38.] MOOSE RIVER WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; BELTRAMI COUNTY. The following areas are added to Moose River wildlife management area:

(1) NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, N1/2-SE1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 7; N1/2, NE1/4-SW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 8; SE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 17; S1/2-NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, E1/2-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, and SE1/4 of Section 18; NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, E1/2-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, and SE1/4 of Section 19; NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1, and Lot 2 of Section 30; all in Township 156 North, Range 37 West; and

(2) Lot 3, Lot 4, and SW1/4 of Section 2; Lot 1, Lot 2, Lot 3, Lot 4, and SE1/4 of Section 3; Lot 1, Lot 2, Lot 3, Lot 4, and S1/2 of Section 4; N1/2-NE1/4 of Section 9; N1/2 of Section 10; N1/2 and NE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 11; E1/2 and N1/2-NW1/4 of Section 12; S1/2-NE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 13; E1/2-NE1/4 and SE1/4 of Section 24; all in Township 156 North, Range 38 West.

Subd. 25. [97A.133] [Subd. 39.] MOYLAN WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; MARSHALL COUNTY. The following areas are added to Moylan wildlife area:

(1) SE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 13; NE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 14; all in Township 155 North, Range 40 West; and

(2) S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 36, Township 156 North, Range 40 West.

Subd. 26. [97A.133] [Subd. 42.] PALMVILLE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; ROSEAU COUNTY. The following areas are added to Palmville wildlife

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

management area: NW1/4-NE1/4 of Section 19, Township 159 North, Range 41 West.

Subd. 27. **[97A.133] [Subd. 43.] PROSPER WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; LAKE OF THE WOODS COUNTY.** The following areas are added to Prosper wildlife management area:

(1) Lot 2, Lot 3, SE1/4-NW1/4, and NE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 4; Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, Lot 5, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 6, Lot 7, SE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 6; W1/2-NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, and SE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 7; all in Township 162 North, Range 33 West; and

(2) SE1/4-SW1/4 and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 28; NE1/4 and SE1/4 of Section 33; Lot 1, Lot 2, Lot 3, W1/2-SW1/4, SE1/4-SW1/4, and Lot 4 of Section 34; all in Township 163 North, Range 33 West.

Subd. 28. **[97A.133] [Subd. 44.] RED LAKE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; BELTRAMI COUNTY.** The following areas are added to Red Lake wildlife management area:

(1) all of Section 1; all of Section 2; all of Section 3; all of Section 4; all of Section 5; all of Section 6; all of Section 7; all of Section 8; all of Section 9; N1/2 and SE1/4 of Section 10; N1/2 and SE1/4 of Section 11; all of Section 12; NW1/4 of Section 13; NE1/4 and S1/2 of Section 14; all of Section 15; all of Section 16; NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 18; S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 2, SE1/4-NW1/4, E1/2-SW1/4, Lot 3, and SE1/4 of Section 19; N1/2-NE1/4 and W1/2 of Section 20; E1/2 and N1/2-SW1/4 of Section 22; E1/2, N1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4-NW1/4, NW1/4-SW1/4, and S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 23; N1/2 and SW1/4 of Section 24; NW1/4 of Section 25; N1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NE1/4, N1/2-NW1/4, and SE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 26; N1/2-NE1/4 and SW1/4-NE1/4 of Section 27; W1/2, N1/2-SE1/4, SW1/4-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 except the North 30 acres thereof, of Section 29; E1/2, E1/2-NW1/4, and NE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 30; W1/2-NE1/4, N1/2-NW1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4, and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 32; NW1/4-SW1/4 and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 33; SE1/4-NE1/4 and SE1/4 of Section 34; N1/2-SW1/4, SW1/4-SW1/4, NW1/4-SE1/4, E1/2-SE1/4, and SW1/4-SE1/4 except that part lying southerly and easterly of the following described line: Commencing at the southeast corner of said Section 35; thence North 0 degrees 4 minutes 13 seconds West along the east line of said Section 35 a distance of 2,377.99 feet to the point of beginning; thence South 89 degrees 49 minutes 33 seconds West 756.27 feet; thence South 1 degree 25 minutes 16 seconds East 823.77 feet; thence South 32 degrees 10 minutes 15 seconds West 942.62 feet; thence North 87 degrees 55 minutes 15 seconds West to the the west line of said SW1/4-SE1/4 and there terminating, of Section 35; all in Township 155 North, Range 30, West;

(2) that part of Lot 4 lying northwesterly of a line running from the southwest corner to the northeast corner thereof of Section 4; all of Section 5; all of Section 6; NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1, and Lot 2 of Section 7; N1/2 of Section 8; SW1/4-SW1/4 and that part of SE1/4-SW1/4 lying southwesterly of a line running from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, of Section 16; S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 17; all of Section 19; NE1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 20; that part of NW1/4-NE1/4

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

lying southwesterly of a line running from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, S1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 21; S1/2-N1/2 and S1/2 of Section 22; that part of SW1/4-NW1/4 lying southwesterly of a line running from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, SW1/4, that part of NE1/4-SE1/4 lying southwesterly of a line running from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, NW1/4-SE1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 23; S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 24; that part of the NE1/4-NE1/4 lying southwesterly of a line running from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, NW1/4-NE1/4, S1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 25; all of Section 26; N1/2 of Section 27; all of Section 28; all of Section 29; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 4, and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 30; NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, E1/2-SW1/4, Lot 3, and Lot 4 of Section 31; all of Section 32; S1/2 of Section 33; W1/2 and SE1/4 of Section 34; E1/2, N1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 35; N1/2 and SE1/4 of Section 36; all in Township 156 North, Range 30 West;

(3) all of Section 1; all of Section 2; Lot 1, Lot 2, S1/2-NE1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 3; S1/2 of Lot 4 and S1/2-SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 7; S1/2-S1/2 of Section 8; S1/2-SW1/4 and S1/2-S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 9; E1/2, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, and S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 10; all of Section 11; all of Section 12; all of Section 13; all of Section 14; all of Section 15; all of Section 16; all of Section 17; all of Section 18; E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1, and Lot 2 of Section 19; NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, and S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 20; N1/2, SW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 21; W1/2 of Section 22; N1/2-NW1/4, S1/2-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 23; W1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 24; E1/2-NW1/4 of Section 25; NE1/4-NE1/4, SW1/4-NE1/4, and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 26; E1/2-SE1/4 of Section 27; NW1/4-NE1/4 and NW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 28; NW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 29; W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 30; Lot 2 of Section 31; Lot 1 and Lot 2 of Section 34; Lot 2 of Section 35; all in Township 155 North, Range 31 West;

(4) all of Section 1; all of Section 2; all of Section 3; all of Section 4; Lot 1, Lot 2, SE1/4-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, NE1/4-SE1/4, and E1/2-SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 5; E1/2-NE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 8; E1/2, N1/2-NW1/4, that part of SW1/4-NW1/4 lying northeasterly of a line running from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, SE1/4-NW1/4, NE1/4-SW1/4, and that part of SE1/4-SW1/4 lying northeasterly of a line running from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, of Section 9; all of Section 10; all of Section 11; all of Section 12; N1/2, SW1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 13; all of Section 14; N1/2, NE1/4-SW1/4, that part of NW1/4-SW1/4 lying northeasterly of a line running from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, that part of the SE1/4-SW1/4 lying northeasterly of a line running from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, and SE1/4 of Section 15; NE1/4-NE1/4, that part of NW1/4-NE1/4 lying northeasterly of a line running from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, and that part of the SE1/4-NE1/4 lying northeasterly of a line running from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, of Section 16; E1/2, that part of NE1/4-SW1/4 lying southeasterly of a line running from the northeast corner to the southwest corner thereof, that part of the SW1/4-SW1/4 lying southeasterly of a line running from the

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

northeast corner to the southwest corner thereof, and SE1/4-SW1/4, of Section 22; all of Section 23; N1/2, SW1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 24; all of Section 25; all of Section 26; all of Section 27; E1/2 of Section 28; NE1/4, NE1/4-SE1/4, that part of NW1/4-SE1/4 lying northeasterly of a line running from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, and that part of the SE1/4-SE1/4 lying northeasterly of a line running from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, of Section 33; all of Section 34; N1/2 and SW1/4 of Section 35; N1/2, SW1/4, W1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 36; all in Township 156 North, Range 31 West;

(5) Lot 1, Section 6, Township 154 North, Range 32 West;

(6) S1/2-NE1/4, that part of the SE1/4-SW1/4 lying southeasterly of a line running from the northeast corner to the southwest corner thereof, and SE1/4 of Section 8; that part of SW1/4-NE1/4 lying southwesterly of a line running from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, S1/2-NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 9; that part of the NE1/4-SW1/4 lying southwesterly of a line running from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, NW1/4-SW1/4, S1/2-SW1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 10; Lot 1, S1/2 of Lot 2, S1/2 of Lot 3, Lot 4, Lot 5, Lot 6, S1/2-NE1/4-NW1/4, S1/2-NW1/4-NW1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4, Lot 7, Lot 8, Lot 9, Lot 10, Lot 11, and Lot 12 of Section 13; S1/2-NE1/4-NE1/4, SE1/4-NE1/4, NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 14; all of Section 15; all of Section 16; E1/2, E1/2-NW1/4, E1/2-SW1/4, and that part of the SW1/4-SW1/4 lying southeasterly of a line running from the northeast corner to the southwest corner thereof, of Section 17; N1/2 and SE1/4 of Section 19; S1/2 of Section 20; NW1/4 and S1/2 of Section 21; NE1/4-NE1/4, SW1/4-NE1/4, and S1/2 of Section 22; N1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NE1/4, NW1/4, and S1/2 of Section 23; all of Section 24; Lot 2 except the East 330 feet thereof, Lot 3, Lot 4, Lot 5, Lot 6 except the North 330 feet thereof, NW1/4, N1/2-SW1/4, SW1/4-SW1/4, Lot 7, Lot 8, Lot 9, Lot 10, Lot 11, and Lot 12 of Section 25; N1/2-NE1/4, SE1/4-NE1/4, SW1/4, NE1/4-SE1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 26; NE1/4, NE1/4-NW1/4, SW1/4, and E1/2-SE1/4 of Section 27; S1/2-SW1/4 and SE1/4 of Section 28; NE1/4 and S1/2 of Section 29; all of Section 30; N1/2, N1/2-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, Lot 1, NW1/4-SE1/4, and Lot 2 of Section 31; N1/2-NE1/4, Lot 1, N1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4-NW1/4, SE1/4-NW1/4 except the East 560 feet thereof, Lot 3 except the North 242.5 feet of the East 560 feet thereof, and Lot 4 of Section 32; Lot 1, Lot 2, N1/2-NW1/4, Lot 3, and Lot 4 of Section 33; Lot 1 and Lot 2 of Section 34; Lot 1, Lot 2, Lot 3, and Lot 4 of Section 35; Lot 2, Lot 3, Lot 4, and Lot 5 of Section 36; all in Township 155 North, Range 32 West;

(7) that part of Lots 1, 2, 7, and 8 lying northwesterly of a line running from the southwest corner of Lot 7 to the northeast corner of Lot 1, of Section 1; Lot 2, SW1/4-NE1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-NW1/4, and SW1/4 of Section 4; all of Section 5; all of Section 6; N1/2 and SE1/4 of Section 7; all of Section 8; NW1/4, that part of NE1/4-SW1/4 lying northwesterly of a line running from the northeast corner to the southwest corner thereof, NW1/4-SW1/4, and that part of the SW1/4-SW1/4 lying northwesterly of a line running from the northeast corner to the southwest corner thereof, of Section 9; W1/2 and that part of NW1/4-SE1/4 lying northwesterly of a line running from the northeast corner to the southwest corner thereof, of Section 11; all of

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Section 18; that part of NE1/4-NW1/4 lying northwesterly of a line running from the northeast corner to the southwest corner thereof and NW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 19; all in Township 156 North, Range 32 West;

(8) Lot 3 and Lot 4 of Section 1; Lot 1, Lot 2, Lot 3, and Lot 4 of Section 2; Lot 1, Lot 2, Lot 3, and Lot 4 of Section 3; Lot 1, Lot 2, Lot 3, and Lot 4 of Section 4; Lot 1, Lot 2, and Lot 3 of Section 5; all in Township 154 North, Range 33 West;

(9) E1/2-SW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 7; S1/2-S1/2 of Section 8; S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 9; SW1/4, that part of NE1/4-SE1/4 lying southwesterly of a line running from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, W1/2-SE1/4, and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 14; all of Section 15; all of Section 16; all of Section 17; all of Section 18; all of Section 19; all of Section 20; all of Section 21; all of Section 22; N1/2 and SW1/4 of Section 23; that part of NW1/4-NW1/4 lying southwesterly of a line from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, SW1/4-NW1/4, that part of SE1/4-NW1/4 lying southwesterly of a line from the northwest corner to the southeast corner thereof, and S1/2 of Section 24; all of Section 25; W1/2 of Section 26; all of Section 27; W1/2 and SE1/4 of Section 28; all of Section 29; all of Section 30; all of Section 31; all of Section 32; all of Section 33; all of Section 34; N1/2 of Section 35; W1/2 and SE1/4 of Section 36; all in Township 155 North, Range 33 West; and

(10) all of Section 1; all of Section 2; all of Section 3; all of Section 4; all of Section 5; all of Section 6; all of Section 7; all of Section 8; all of Section 9; all of Section 10; all of Section 11; all of Section 12; all of Section 13; all of Section 14; all of Section 15; N1/2 and SW1/4 of Section 16; all of Section 17; all of Section 18; all of Section 19; all of Section 20; all of Section 21; all of Section 22; all of Section 23; NE1/4 and W1/2 of Section 24; that part of NW1/4-NE1/4 lying northwesterly of a line from the northeast corner to the southwest corner thereof and N1/2-NW1/4 of Section 26; N1/2-NE1/4, N1/2-NW1/4, and that part of SW1/4-NW1/4 lying northwesterly of a line from the northeast corner to the southwest corner thereof, of Section 27; N1/2 and that part of NW1/4-SW1/4 lying northwesterly of a line from the northeast corner to the southwest corner thereof, of Section 28; N1/2, SW1/4, N1/2-SE1/4, and that part of SW1/4-SE1/4 lying northwesterly of a line from the northeast corner to the southwest corner thereof, of Section 29; NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, that part of NE1/4-SW1/4, Lot 3, SE1/4-SW1/4 lying northeasterly of a line running from the northwest corner of Lot 3 to the southeast corner of SE1/4-SW1/4, and SE1/4 of Section 30; all in Township 156 North, Range 33 West.

Subd. 29. [97A.133] [Subd. 45.] ROBERT WICKSTROM WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; AITKIN COUNTY. The following area is added to the Robert Wickstrom wildlife management area: Lot 4, N1/2-NW1/4, SW1/4-NW1/4, Lot 3, Lot 8, and Lot 10 of Section 15, Township 49 North, Range 25 West.

Subd. 30. [97A.133] [Subd. 46.] ROCKY POINT WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; LAKE OF THE WOODS COUNTY. The following area is added to Rocky Point wildlife management area: SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 3; Lot 3, Lot 4, S1/2-SW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 4; Lot 1 and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

5; N1/2-NE1/4 and NE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 9; NW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 10; all in Township 163 North, Range 34 West.

Subd. 31. **[97A.133] [Subd. 47.] ROSEAU LAKE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; ROSEAU COUNTY.** The following areas are added to Roseau Lake wildlife management area:

(1) SE1/4-SW1/4, E1/2-SE1/4, and S1/2-SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 7; SW1/4 and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 8; N1/2, NE1/4-SE1/4, and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 9; N1/2-NE1/4 and SW1/4-NE1/4 of Section 17; Lot 2 and Lot 6 of Section 18; Subdivision 1, Subdivision 2, Subdivision 8, Subdivision 9, East equal 2/3 of Subdivision 10, Subdivision 12 north of ditch, Subdivision 13, Subdivision 14, and Subdivision 15 of the subdivision of the meandered bed of Roseau lake (part of Sections 18, 19, 20, 29 and 30); E1/2-NE1/4 of Section 21; Lot 4 and SW1/4 of Section 29; all in Township 163 North, Range 40 West; and

(2) SW1/4-NW1/4 and NW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 24, Township 163 North, Range 41 West.

Subd. 32. **[97A.133] [Subd. 49.] SALO WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; AITKIN COUNTY.** The following areas are added to the Salo wildlife management area: E1/2-NE1/4 and E1/2-SE1/4 of Section 25; SE1/4-NE1/4 and SE1/4 of Section 36; all in Township 48 North, Range 22 West.

Subd. 33. **[97A.133] [Subd. 50.] SAW-WHET WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; BELTRAMI COUNTY.** The following area is added to Saw-Whet wildlife management area: the SE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 4; S1/2-NE1/4 and NW1/4 of Section 9; all in Township 155 North, Range 37 West.

Subd. 34. **[97A.133] [Subd. 51.] SEM WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; MARSHALL COUNTY.** The following areas are added to Sem wildlife management area:

(1) SE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 5, Township 154 North, Range 39 West; and

(2) East 660 feet of South 660 feet of SW1/4-NE1/4, West 660 feet of South 660 feet of SE1/4-NE1/4, NE1/4-SE1/4, and N1/2-SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 29; Lot 4 and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 30; N1/2-SE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 33; N1/2-SW1/4-NW1/4, and E1/2-SW1/4 of Section 34; all in Township 155 North, Range 39 West.

Subd. 35. **[97A.133] [Subd. 53.] SKIME WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; ROSEAU COUNTY.** The following area is added to Skime wildlife management area: E1/2-NW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 26, Township 159 North, Range 39 West.

Subd. 36. **[97A.133] [Subd. 55.] SOUTH SHORE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; LAKE OF THE WOODS AND ROSEAU COUNTIES.** The following areas are added to South Shore wildlife management area: Lot 1 and Lot 2 of Section 7; NE1/4-NE1/4, Lot 1, S1/2-NE1/4, Lot 2, Lot 3, and Lot 4 of Section 18; NE1/4-NW1/4, Lot 1, Lot 2, SE1/4-NW1/4, and Lot 3 of Section 19; all in Township 163 North, Range 34 West.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

Subd. 37. [97A.133] [Subd. 56.] SPOONER WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; LAKE OF THE WOODS COUNTY. The following area is added to Spooner wildlife management area: the NW1/4-NW1/4, S1/2-NW1/4, and N1/2-SW1/4 of Section 16; NE1/4 of Section 17; all in Township 160 North, Range 31 West.

Subd. 38. [97A.133] [Subd. 57.] THIEF LAKE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; MARSHALL COUNTY. The following areas are added to Thief Lake wildlife management area:

(1) that part of Lot 6 described as follows: beginning at the SW corner of Lot 6, said point being within the right-of-way of state trunk highway No. 89, thence due N 400 feet; thence at right angles in an easterly direction 400 feet; thence at right angles in a southerly direction 400 feet; thence at right angles in a westerly direction 400 feet to the point of beginning, of Section 6, Township 158 North, Range 39 West; and

(2) NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 3; S1/2-NW1/4 of Section 5; all in Township 157 North, Range 40 West.

Subd. 39. [97A.133] [Subd. 59.] VANOSE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; MAHNOMEN COUNTY. The following areas are added to the Vanose wildlife management area:

(1) SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 31, Township 146 North, Range 40 West; and

(2) the West 66 feet of the W1/2-NW1/4 of Section 25, Township 146 North, Range 41 West.

Subd. 40. [97A.133] [Subd. 60.] WABUN WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; MAHNOMEN COUNTY. The following areas are added to the Wabun wildlife management area:

(1) SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 31, Township 143 North, Range 41 West; and

(2) SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 13; and E1/2-NE1/4 of Section 23; all in Township 143 North, Range 42 West.

Subd. 41. [97A.133] [Subd. 62.] WAPITI WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; BELTRAMI COUNTY. The following areas are added to Wapiti wildlife management area: SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 12, Township 157 North, Range 38 West.

Subd. 42. [97A.133] [Subd. 63.] WILLOW RUN WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; BELTRAMI COUNTY. The following area is added to Willow Run wildlife management area: SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 7; SW1/4-NE1/4 of Section 17; and SE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 20; all in Township 155 North, Range 38 West.

Subd. 43. [97A.133] [Subd. 64.] WILLOWSIPPI WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA; AITKIN COUNTY. The following areas are added to the Willowsippi wildlife management area: W1/2-NE1/4 and N1/2-SW1/4 of Section 10; NE1/4 and NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 11; NW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 12; and S1/2-NE1/4 and S1/2-NW1/4 of Section 15; all in Township 50 North, Range 25 West.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

Subd. 44. **[97A.133] [Subd. 65.] WOLF TRAIL MANAGEMENT AREA; BELTRAMI COUNTY.** The following areas are added to Wolf Trail wildlife management area:

(1) N1/2-NW1/4 of Section 16; and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 21; all in Township 155 North, Range 37 West; and

(2) SW1/4-NW1/4 and NW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 11; S1/2-NE1/4 and S1/2-NW1/4 of Section 15; all in Township 155 North, Range 38 West.

Sec. 22. DELETIONS FROM STATE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREAS.

Subdivision 1. CLEAR LAKE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA, AITKIN COUNTY. The following areas are deleted from the Clear Lake wildlife management area: NE1/4-SW1/4 and Lot 5 of Section 3; Lot 1 and Lot 2 of Section 9; and NE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 10; all in Township 49 North, Range 25 West.

Subd. 2. LONE PINE WILDLIFE MANAGEMENT AREA, AITKIN COUNTY. The following area is deleted from Lone Pine wildlife management area: S1/2-NW1/4 of Section 26, Township 48 North, Range 23 West.

Sec. 23. MCGREGOR MARSH SCIENTIFIC AND NATURAL AREA.

No dedication of any additional consolidated conservation lands to the McGregor Marsh scientific and natural area may be made until completion of the Aitkin county water planning task force study regarding water issues in the city of McGregor. Prior to any proposed dedication, the commissioner of natural resources must hold a public hearing in the city of McGregor concerning any proposed dedication. Notice of the hearing must be published at least once in a qualified newspaper that has its known office of issue in the county seat of Aitkin county, and the notice must be published at least seven days in advance of the hearing. Any lands dedicated must be subject to the implementation of the water management actions, if any, identified in the study.

Sec. 24. EXCHANGE PARCELS.

Subdivision 1. LAND EXCHANGE. If a land exchange is offered to the state that, after evaluation by the department of natural resources, is determined to (1) meet the state's natural resources goals, and (2) meet all other land exchange requirements under existing law, the parcels in subdivisions 2 to 6 shall be exchanged.

Subd. 2. AITKIN COUNTY. Waukenabo state forest: SW1/4-NE1/4 except part in Aitkin Municipal Airport runway clear zone, NE1/4-SW1/4 except part in Aitkin Municipal Airport runway clear zone, and NE1/4-SE1/4 of Section 18; that part of NE1/4-SW1/4 lying north of Soo Railway right-of-way of Section 19; NE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 21; NW1/4 of Section 23; and S1/2-NE1/4, NW1/4-SE1/4, and W1/2-NE1/4-SE1/4 less railroad right-of-way of Section 24; all in Township 47 North, Range 26 West.

Subd. 3. KOOCHICHING COUNTY. Pine Island state forest:

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

(1) W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 1; and SW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 12; all in Township 159 North, Range 27 West;

(2) NE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 34, Township 160 North, Range 28 West; and

(3) SW1/4-NE1/4 of Section 7, Township 160 North, Range 29 West.

Subd. 4. LAKE OF THE WOODS COUNTY. Lake of the Woods state forest:

(1) SW1/4-NE1/4, E1/2-NW1/4, and SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 21, Township 159 North, Range 30 West;

(2) a tract of land in the SE1/4-NE1/4 beginning at a point where the western boundary of the right-of-way of state trunk highway No. 72 intersects the southern boundary of the SE1/4-NE1/4, thence West along the southern boundary a distance of 150 feet to a point; thence North at right angles a distance of 80 feet to a point; thence East parallel to the southern boundary a distance of 150 feet to a point in the western boundary line of right-of-way; thence South along the western boundary of right-of-way a distance of 80 feet to place of beginning of Section 1; NE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 3; SW1/4-NW1/4 beginning at a point 700 feet north from 1/4 post on the section line between Sections 16 and 17; North 82-1/2 feet; East 528 feet; South 82-1/2 feet; West 528 feet to point of beginning of Section 16; all in Township 158 North, Range 31 West; and

(3) SW1/4-SW1/4, beginning at a point on north boundary state rural highway No. 32, 177.88 feet easterly from southeast corner of Lot 14, Block 4, Pitt; going North 19 degrees 14 minutes East 139-1/2 feet; South 70 degrees 46 minutes East 50 feet; South 19 degrees 14 minutes West 139-1/2 feet to north boundary state rural highway No. 32; northwest along said boundary 50 feet to beginning of Section 35, Township 161 North, Range 32 West.

Subd. 5. MARSHALL COUNTY. (a) Agder wildlife management area: NE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 34, Township 155 North, Range 42 West.

(b) Cedar wildlife management area: SE1/4-NW1/4 and W1/2-NE1/4 a strip of land 2 rods wide, lying 1 rod on either side of the quarter line running north and south through Section 14; and NE1/4 of Section 29; all in Township 157 North, Range 42 West.

(c) Espelie wildlife management area: SW1/4-SW1/4 of Section 28; Lot 1 of Section 31; and SE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 34; all in Township 156 North, Range 39 West.

(d) Moylan wildlife management area:

(1) Lot 5 of Section 6, Township 154 North, Range 40 West;

(2) SE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 13; and NE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 14; all in Township 155 North, Range 40 West; and

(3) S1/2-SW1/4 of Section 36, Township 156 North, Range 40 West.

(e) Sem wildlife management area:

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

- (1) SE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 5, Township 154 North, Range 39 West; and
- (2) Lot 4 and SE1/4-SW1/4 of Section 30, Township 155 North, Range 39 West.
- (f) Thief Lake wildlife management area:

(1) that part of Lot 6 described as follows: beginning at the SW corner of Lot 6, said point being within the right-of-way of state trunk highway No. 89, thence due North 400 feet, thence at right angles in an easterly direction 400 feet, thence at right angles in a southerly direction 400 feet, thence at right angles in a westerly direction 400 feet to the point of beginning of Section 6, Township 158 North, Range 39 West; and

(2) NW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 3 and S1/2-NW1/4 of Section 5; all in Township 157 North, Range 40 West.

Subd. 6. ROSEAU COUNTY. (a) Beltrami Island state forest:

(1) Lot 1 lying south of railroad of Section 4, Township 162 North, Range 36 West; and

(2) Lot 1, Lot 2, and S1/2-NE1/4 of Section 2; and SE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 10; all in Township 161 North, Range 37 West.

(b) Lost River state forest:

(1) SE1/4-SW1/4 and W1/2-SE1/4 of Section 2; S1/2-SW1/4 and S1/2-SE1/4 of Section 5; SE1/4-NE1/4 of Section 19; N1/2-NW1/4 of Section 23; and SW1/4-SE1/4 of Section 30; all in Township 163 North, Range 37 West;

(2) E1/2-NW1/4 of Section 35, Township 164 North, Range 37 West;

(3) N1/2-SE1/4 of Section 3, Township 162 North, Range 38 West; and

(4) NW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 24; NE1/4-NW1/4 of Section 25; and SW1/4-NW1/4 of Section 34; all in Township 163 North, Range 38 West.

Sec. 25. CONSOLIDATED-CONSERVATION LAND DISPOSITION REPORT.

(a) The commissioner of natural resources shall develop recommendations on the designation of undesignated consolidated-conservation lands that were subject to the 1991 commissioner's order classifying the lands as suitable for wildlife management, research and habitat programs, public hunting, and other recreational purposes.

(b) By June 30, 2000, a county with lands subject to the 1991 commissioner's order referenced in paragraph (a) may submit a county board resolution to the commissioner of natural resources requesting that the lands be reviewed by the commissioner in consultation with the county board.

(c) By September 1, 2000, the commissioner shall hold at least one public meeting on the designation of the consolidated-conservation lands in each county for which the commissioner receives a resolution from the county board under paragraph (b).

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.

(d) The commissioner, in consultation with a county board that submitted a resolution in paragraph (b), shall develop recommendations on the disposition of the lands referenced in paragraph (a), including designating the lands:

(1) as state forests;

(2) as wildlife management areas;

(3) for both motorized and nonmotorized trail management;

(4) for other recreational or conservation management, including joint management between the department's divisions that would allow for multiple recreational uses; or

(5) sale or exchange of lands that are not appropriate for conservation or recreation purposes.

(e) By October 1, 2000, the commissioner must report the commissioner's draft recommendations on the disposition of the lands to the county boards with lands subject to paragraph (a).

(f) By December 1, 2000, each county board that submitted a resolution under paragraph (b) may submit a resolution providing comments on the proposed draft recommendations in paragraph (e).

(g) By January 15, 2001, the commissioner shall report to the legislative policy and finance committees with jurisdiction over natural resources on final recommendations for disposition of the consolidated-conservation lands referenced in paragraph (a). The report must include copies of the resolutions submitted under paragraph (f).

Sec. 26. ISOLATED CONSOLIDATED-CONSERVATION LANDS.

(a) By January 15, 2001, the commissioner of natural resources shall report to the legislative policy and finance committees with jurisdiction over natural resources on recommendations for disposition of isolated consolidated-conservation lands in areas that were subject to the 1989 and 1991 commissioner's orders classifying the lands as suitable for wildlife management, research and habitat programs, public hunting, and other recreational purposes.

(b) The recommendations under paragraph (a) may include designation, exchange, or sale of isolated consolidated-conservation lands. Isolated consolidated-conservation lands that are not appropriate for conservation and recreation purposes may be recommended for sale or exchange.

(c) For the purposes of this section, "isolated consolidated-conservation lands" are parcels of consolidated-conservation land of 40 acres or less that are not contiguous with other public land.

Sec. 27. INSTRUCTION TO REVISOR; EFFECT OF SESSION LAW DESCRIPTIONS.

(a) The revisor need not include the legal descriptions for state wildlife management areas under Minnesota Statutes, section 97A.133, but must include a

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by strikeout.

history of the session laws establishing or amending the boundaries of state wildlife management areas under each subdivision in the same manner as provided for state parks under Minnesota Statutes, section 85.012.

(b) The lands described in the session laws establishing or changing the boundaries of each state wildlife management area are included in the state wildlife management areas as established or changed.

Sec. 28. RULES FOR PUBLIC USE OF RECREATIONAL AREAS.

(a) The commissioner of natural resources shall amend the permanent rules relating to public use of recreational areas, Minnesota Rules, parts 6100.0100 to 6100.2400, according to this section and pursuant to Minnesota Statutes, section 14.388.

(b) Minnesota Rules, part 6100.1950, subpart 1, item B, shall be amended to read: "Motor vehicles may operate on forest lands classified as limited only on forest roads that are not posted and designated closed and on forest trails or areas that are posted and designated to allow motor vehicle use, subject to the limitations and exceptions in this part."

(c) Minnesota Rules, part 6100.1950, subpart 7, shall be amended by adding an item D to read: "On forest lands classified as limited, persons lawfully engaged in hunting big game or constructing hunting stands during October, November, and December, or trapping during open seasons, may use ATV's off forest trails in a manner consistent with this subpart. This exception does not apply in the Richard J. Dorer Memorial Hardwood Forest." A technical correction may be made to item C to correct the reference to this part.

(d) Minnesota Rules, part 6100.1950, subpart 7, shall be amended by adding an item E to read: "No person shall construct an unauthorized permanent trail on forest lands."

Sec. 29. SMOKECHASER EMPLOYMENT STATUS.

By October 15, 2000, the commissioner of natural resources shall make a recommendation to the governor and the legislative committees with jurisdiction over natural resources policy and finance on the inclusion of smokechasers employed by the department of natural resources as covered employees for the purposes of Minnesota Statutes, sections 268.03 to 268.23.

Sec. 30. EFFECTIVE DATE.

Sections 15 to 17 and 20 to 27 are effective the day following final enactment. Sections 18 and 19 apply to payments made in calendar year 2001 and thereafter.

Presented to the governor May 11, 2000

Signed by the governor May 15, 2000, 10:47 a.m.

New language is indicated by underline, deletions by ~~strikeout~~.